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IN THE ATTER OF

CRUSH INTERNATIONAL LI ITED, ET AL. , DKT. NO. 8853

DR. PEPPER CO PANY, DKT. NO. 8854

THE SEVEN-UP CO PANY, DKT. NO. 8857

THE ROYAL CROWN COLA CO PANY, DKT. NO. 8858

NORTON SI , INC. , ET AL. , DKT. NO. 8877

FINAL ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SEC.

5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Complaints, July 15 J971 * and March 3, 1972** Order, Sept. , 1981

This order dismisses without prejudice the complaints issued by the Commission in
1971"'1972; against five major soft drink manufacturers charged with.
attempting to restrict where bottlers may sell, by including "territorial
exclusivity" provisions in their licensing agreements. The Commission
concluded that since the instant complaints were based on the same legal
standards utilized in the matters of Coca-Cola Co. and Pepsico Co. which were
subsequently set aside due to changes wrought by the 19S0Soft Drink
Interbrand Competition Act , further proceedings would not be in the public
interest at this time.

Appearances

For the Commission: Ronald A. Bloch and David 1. Wilson.

For the respondents: Louis J. Keating, Kirkland Ellis Chicago,
Ill. , for Crush International , Ltd. , w: D. White, Sr., Rain, Harrell,

Emery, Young Doke, Dallas, Tex. , for Dr. Pepper Co. Eugene J.
Meigher, Arent, Fox, Kintner, Plotkin Kahn Washington , D.C. , for
The Seven-Up Co. James H. Wallace, Jr. , Kirkland Ellis
Washington, D. , for The Royal Crown Cola Co. , and Edwin 

Rockefeller, Bierbower Rockefeller Washington, D. , for Norton
Simon, Inc. , and Canada Dry Corp.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that the
parties named in the caption hereof, each of which separately is
made and sometimes hereinafter referred to as respondent(s), or
respectively as Crush International Limited, Beverages Internation-

. Crush International Limire , et aI. , Dr. Pepper OJ. , The Seven-Up Co., and The Royal Crown Colao..

.. Nortn Simon , Inc. , etal.
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al Inc. or Crush International Inc. , have violated the provisions of
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U.8.c. 45), and it
appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint
stating its charges in that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. For the purposes of this complaint, the following
definitions shall apply:

(a) Bottler - any individual , partnership, corporation, association
or other business or legal entity which purchases respondents

concentrate for use in the manufacture and sale, primarily at
wholesale, of respondents ' pre-mix or post- mix syrups or soft drink
products , or who purchases respondents ' pre-mix or post- mix syrups
or soft drink products for resale, primarily at wholesale;

(b) Central warehousing - a method of distribution in which soft
drink products are received at a storage facility and either resold or
delivered to retail outlets or wholesalers;

(c) Concentrate - the basic soft drink ingredient sold to bottlers by
respondents, which is combined with water and other ingredients for
packaging in bottles or cans for sale and distribution as soft drink
products , or is used to make post-mix and pre-mix syrups; (2)

(d) Consignment - a form of distribution in which the consignor
retains title, dominion, bears all risks of loss and delivers his

products to the consignee who is indistinguishable from a salesman
or agent;

(e) Place of business - the location of any facilities available to a
bottler without regard to customers or geographic area for produc-
tion or service in the conduct of business operations , to include but
not limited to business headquarters, branch sales offices , ware-
houses and garages, but specifically excluding the plant at which a
bottler combines concentrate with water, and possibly other ingredi-
ents, for the packaging of soft drink products;

(I) Post-mix syrup - soft drink concentrate which is used in
fountain dispensing or vending equipment and is usually sold by
bottlers in steel tanks. A typical post-mix system draws one ounce of
syrup from a five-gallon tank and mixes it at the point of sale with
five ounces of carbonated water to produce 600 six-ounce finished
soft drink servings per tank;

(g) 

Pre-mix syrup - although essentially the same syrup as post-
mix , a pre-mix system differs from a post-mix system in that it draws
from a five-gallon tank a serving of soft drink products containing
both syrup and carbonated water to produce 100 six-ounce finished
soft drink servings per tank; and
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(h) Soft drink products - nonalcoholic beverages and colas
carbonated and uncarbonated, flavored and nonflavored, sold in

bottles and cans, or through pre-mix and post-mix systems or the
like.

PAR. 2. Respondent Crush International Limited is a corporation
organized, existing and conducting its business under and pursuant
to the laws of the Province of Ontario, Canada. It maintains its office
and principal place of business at 1590 O'Connor Drive, Toronto 16
Canada. In the United States , an office is maintained at 2201 ~ain
St. , Evanston , Ilinois.

Respondent Beverages International Inc. , a wholly-owned subsid-
iary of Crush International Limited, is a corporation organized,

existing and conducting its business under and pursuant to the laws
of the State of Ilinois. It maintains its office and principal place of
business at 2201 Main St. , Evanston , Ilinois. (3)

Respondent Crush International Inc. , a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Crush International Limited , is a corporation organized, existing and
conducting its business under and pursuant to the laws of the State
of Delaware. It maintains its office and principal place of business at
2201 ~ain St. , Evanston , Ilinois.

PAR. 3. Respondent Crush International Limited is engaged
principally in the manufacture and sale of concentrate which it sells
to its bottlers who purchase the concentrate under a license to
produce and sell soft drink products under such trade names as
Orange Crush

" "

Gurd' s Ginger Ale

" "

American Dry Ginger Ale,
Hires Root Beer " ttKick-Kola

" "

Grape Crush Lime Crush
Grapefruit Crush

" "

Lemon-Lime Crush Cola

" "

Crush Cream
Soda," "Bitter Lemon," "Brio Chinotto " and "India Express.

Plants for the manufacture of concentrate are located in Canada
at Toronto and Ottawa, Ontario and ~ontreal , Quebec , and in the
United States at Evanston, Ilinois and Trenton, New Jersey.
Approximately 300 United States and 30 Canadian bottlers are
franchised to sell its Orange Crush and/or Hires Root Beer soft drink
products. Bottlers combine the concentrate with water and other
ingredients and package the mixture in bottles for resale as soft
drink products to retailers.

For the year ending October 30 , 1968 , Crush International Limited
had sales of $33 069,442, and assets of $21 178 277 (Canadian

dollars). As to its wholly-owned United States subsidiaries , Bever-
ages International Inc. and Crush International Inc., sales of
concentrate and Orange Crush and Hires Root Beer soft drink
products were made to over 300 domestic bottlers in 1968. In the
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United States , agreements for Orange Crush and Hires Root Beer
trademarked concentrate and soft drink products are between the
bottler and Crush International Inc. and Beverages International
Inc.

Corporate officers of Beverages International Inc. and Crush
International Inc. , are identical; and Mr. Louis Collins is President of
these respondents as well as of respondent Crush International
Limited.

PAR. 4. Respondents are engaged in "commerce" within the
meaning of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U. C. 44) in that

a continuous flow of interstate and foreign commerce regarding
concentrate and soft drink products (4Jexists between offices in
Evanston , Illinois and Toronto, Ontario, and production facilities in
Canada at Toronto and Ottawa , Ontario , and ~ontreal , Quebec, and
in the United States at Evanston , Ilinois, and Trenton , New Jersey,
and the numerous bottlers located throughout the United States
which purchase their products.
PAR. 5. In the course and conduct of their businesses, respon-

dents , except to the extent limited by the acts , practices and methods
of competition hereinafter alleged; have been and are now in
competition with other corporations, firms , partnerships and persons
engaged in the manufacture, processing, distribution and sale of
concentrate and soft drink products in commerce.

PAR. 6. Respondents have hindered, frustrated, lessened and

eliminated competition in the distribution and sale of pre-mix and
post-mix syrups and soft drink products sold under their trade names
by restricting bottlers from selling outside of a designated geographi-
cal area. This restriction is set forth in the agreements between
respondents Beverages International Inc., or Crush International
Inc. , and their bottlers. A typical agreement between respondents
Beverages International Inc. , or Crush International Inc. , and their
bottlers provides that:

Botter shaIJ use its best efforts to sell (CRUSH/HIRES) within TERRITORY and not
deliver or sell (CRUSH/IIIRESJ outside of TERRITORY. Bottler shall not knowingly
sell (CRUSH/HIRESj within TERRITORY for resale or delivery outside of TERRITO-
RY or sell or deliver (CRUSH/HIRES) to any person after having been notified by
COMPANY that such person is reselling or delivering (CRUSH/HIRES) outside
TERRITORY.

PAR. 7. The aforesaid agreements used by respondents , Bever-
ages International Inc. and Crush International Inc., the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of respondent Crush International Limited , have
had , and may continue to have , the following effects:
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(a) Competition between and among respondents ' bottlers in the
distribution and sale of "Hires Root Beer" and "Orange Crush"
brands of soft drink products has been eliminated;

(b) Innumerable retailers and other customers have been de-
prived of the right to purchase "Hires Root Beer" and "Orange
Crush" brands of soft drink products from the bottler of their choice
at a competitive price; and (5)

(c) Consumers of "Hires Root Beer" and "Orange Crush" brands
of soft drink . products have been deprived of the opportunity of
obtaining such products in an unrestricted market and at competi-
tive prices.

PAR. 8. Respondents ' contracts , agreements, acts, practices and
methods of competition aforesaid have had, and may continue to
have, the effect of lessening competition in the advertising, merchan-
dising, distribution , offering for sale and sale of pre-mix and post-mix
syrups and soft drink products; deprive, and may continue to
deprive, the public of the benefits of competition in the purchase of
soft drink products; and constitute unfair methods of competition
and unfair acts or practices, in commerce, in violation of Section 5 of
the Federal Trade Commission Act.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission , having reason to believe that the
Dr. Pepper Company, hereby made and sometimes hereinafter
referred to as respondent , or Dr. Pepper, has violated the provisions
of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U.8.C. 45), and
it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint
stating its charges in that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. For the purposes of this complaint, the following
definitions shall apply:

(a) Bottler - any individual , partnership, corporation , association
or other business or legal entity which purchases respondent'

concentrate for use in the manufacture and sale, primarily at
wholesale , of respondent's pre-mix or post-mix syrups or soft drink
products, or who purchases respondent' s pre-mix or post-mix syrups
or soft drink products for resale, primarily at wholesale;

(b) Central warehousing - a method of distribution in which soft
drink products are received at a storage facility and either resold or
delivered to retail outlets or wholesalers;

(c) Concentrate - the basic soft drink ingredient sold to bottlers by



CRUSH INT'L LTD. , ET AL. 433

428 Complaints

respondent, which is combined with water and other ingredients for
packaging in bottles or cans for sale and distribution as soft drink
products, or is used to make post-mix and pre-mix syrups;

(d) Consignment - a form of distribution in which the consignor
retains title, dominion, bears all risks of loss and delivers his

products to the consignee who is indistinguishable from a salesman
or agent; (2)

(e) Place of business - the location of any facilities available to a
bottler without regard to customers or geographic area for produc-

tion or service in the conduct of business operations, to include but
not limited to business headquarters, branch sales offices, ware-
houses and garages, but specifically excluding the plant at which a
bottler combines concentrate with water, and possibly other ingredi-
ents, for the packaging of soft drink products;

(D Post-mix syrup - soft drink concentrate which is used in
fountain dispensing or vending equipment and is usually sold by
bottlers in steel tanks. A typical post-mix system draws one ounce of
syrup from a five-gallon tank and mixes it at the point of sale with
five ounces of carbonated water to produce 600 six-ounce finished
soft drink servings per tank;

(g) 

Pre-mix syrup - although essentially the same syrup as post-
mix a pre-mix system differs from a post-mix system in that it draws
from a five-gallon tank a serving of soft drink products containing
both syrup and carbonated water to produce 100 six-ounce finished
soft drink servings per tank; and

(h) Soft drink products - nonalcoholic beverages and colas
carbonated and uncarbonated, flavored and nonflavored, sold in
bottles and cans , or through pre-mix and post-mix systems or the
like.

PAR. 2. Respondent is a corporation organized, existing and
conducting its business under and pursuant to the laws of the State
of Colorado. It maintains its office and principal place of business at
5523 ~ockingbird Lane, Box 5986, Dallas, Texas. Respondent had
sales of $41 883 072 and assets of $19,479 696 in 1969. In 1968 , Dr.
Pepper made sales to over 482 bottlers located in every state of the
United States.

PAR. 3. Respondent is engaged principally in the manufacture
and sale of concentrate which it sells to its over 482 bottlers who
purchase the concentrate under a license to produce and sell soft
drink products under respondent's trade names such as ('Dr.
Pepper

" "

Dietetic Dr. Pepper" and "Salute." Dr. Pepper bottlers
combine the concentrate with water and other ingredients and
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package the mixture in bottles and cans for resale as soft drink
products to retailers. In addition to manufacturing and selling
concentrate to its bottlers, Dr. Pepper operates bottling plants in
three areas of the United States and sells soft drink products to
retailers. (3)

PAR. 4. Respondent is engaged in " commerce" within the mean-
ing of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U. C. 44) in that a
continuous flow of interstate commerce in pre-mix concentrate and
soft drink products exists between its headquarters and production
facilities located in Dallas , Texas , and the numerous bottlers located
throughout the United States which purchase its products.
PAR. 5. In the course and conduct of its business, respondent

except to the extent limited by the acts, practices and methods of
competition hereinafter alleged, has been and is now in competition
with other corporations, firms, partnerships and persons engaged in
the manufacture , processing, distribution and sale of soft drink
products in commerce.
PAR. 6. Dr. Pepper has hindered , frustrated , lessened and elimi-

nated competition in the distribution and sale of pre-mix and post-
mix syrups and soft drink products sold under its trade names by
restricting its bottlers from selling outside of a designated geographi-
cal area. This restriction is set forth in the agreements between
respondent and its bottlers. A typical agreement between respondent
and its bottlers provides that the bottler " . . . at all times agrees not
to sell bottled Dr. Pepper outside the said licensed territory and not
to sell such product knowingly to any purchaser who intends to place
such product for sale outside the said licensed territory. 

. .

PAR. 7. The aforesaid agreements used by respondent have had

and may continue to have, the following effects:

(a) Competition between and among respondent's bottlers in the
distribution and sale of "Dr. Pepper

" "

Dietetic Dr. Pepper" and
Salute" brands of soft drink products has been eliminated;
(b) Competition between and among Dr. Pepper s bottling opera-

tions and its botters in the distribution and sale of Dr Pepper soft
drink products at the wholesale level has been eliminated;

(c) Innumerable retailers and other customers have been de-
prived of the right to purchase "Dr. Pepper

" "

Dietetic Dr. Pepper
and "Salute" brands of soft drink products from the bottler of their
choice at a competitive price; and (4)
(d) Consumers of "Dr. Pepper

" "

Dietetic Dr. Pepper" and
Salute" brands of soft drink products have been deprived of the
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opportunity of obtaining such products in an unrestricted market
and at competitive prices.

PAR. 8. Respondent's contracts , agreements , acts , practices and
methods of competition aforesaid have had , and may continue to
have, the effect of lessening competition in the advertising, merchan.
dising, distribution , offering for sale and sale of pre-mix and post-mix
syrups and soft drink products; deprive, and may continue to
deprive, the public of the benefits of competition in the purchase of
soft drink products; and constitute unfair methods of competition

and unfair acts or practices, in commerce , in violation of Section 5 of
the Federal Trade Commission Act.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission , having reason to believe that The
Seven-Up Company, hereby made and sometimes hereinafter re-
ferred to as respondent, or Seven-Up, has violated the provisions of
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U. C. 45), and it
appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect
thereof would be in the public int rest, hereby issues its complaint
stating its charges in that respect as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. For the purposes of this complaint, the following
definitions shall apply:

(a) Bottler - any individual , partnership, corporation , association
or other business or legal entity which purchases respondent's
concentrate for use in the manufacturing and sale primarily at
wholesale, of respondent' s pre-mix or post-mix syrups or soft drink
products or who purchases respondent' s pre-mix or post-mix syrups
or soft drink products for resale, primarily at wholesale;

(b) Central Warehousing - a method of distribution in which soft
drink products are received at a storage facility and either resold or
delivered to retail outlets or wholesalers;

(c) Concentrate - the basic soft drink ingredient sold to bottlers by
respondent, which is combined with water and other ingredients for
packaging in bottles or cans for sale and distribution as soft drink
products , Or is used to make post-mix and pre-mix syrups;

(d) Consignment - a form of distribution in which the consignor
retains title, dominion, bears all risks of loss and delivers his
products to the consignee who is indistinguishable from a salesman
or agent; (2)

(e) Place of business - the location of any facilities available to a
bottler without regard to customers or geographic area for produc-
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tion or service in the conduct of business operations , to include but
not limited to business headquarters, branch sales offices, ware-
houses and garages, but specifically excluding the plant at which a
bottler combines concentrate with water, and possibly other ingredi-
ents , for the packaging of soft drink products;

CD Post-mix syrup - soft drink concentrate which is used in
fountain dispensing or vending equipment and is usually sold by
bottlers in steel tanks. A typical post-mix system draws one ounce of
syrup from a five-gallon tank and mixes it at the point of sale with
six ounces of carbonated water to produce 600 six-ounce finished soft
drink servings;

(g) 

Pre-mix syrup - although essentially the same syrup as post-

mix , a pre-mix system differs from a post-mix system in that it draws
from a five-gallon tank a serving of soft drink products containing
both syrup and carbonated water to produce 100 six-ounce finished
soft drink servings; and

(h) Soft drink products - nonalcoholic beverages and colas
carbonated and uncarbonated, flavored and nonflavored, sold in
bottles and cans , or through pre-mix and post-mix systems or the
like.

PAR:" 2. Respondent is a corporation organized, existing and
conducting its business under and pursuant to the laws of the State
of ~issouri. It maintains its offce and principal place of business at
121 South Meramec, St. Louis, ~issouri. Respondent had sales of
$83 255 014 and assets of $38 894 206 in 1969. In 1968 , Seven-
made sales to over 470 domestic bottlers located in every State ofthe
United States.

PAR. 3. Respondent is engaged principally in the manufacture
and sale of concentrate which it sells to its over 470 bottlers who
purchase the concentrate under a license to produce and sell soft
drink products under respondent's trade names such as " Up,
Diet 7-Up,

" "

LIKE" and "Howdy." Seven-Up bottlers combine the
concentrate with water and other ingredients and package the
mixture in bottles and cans for resale as soft drink products to
retailers.

PAR. 4. Respondent is engaged in "commerce" within the mean-
ing of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U.8.C. 44) in that a
continuous flow of interstate (3)commerce in concentrate and soft
drink products exists between its headquarters and production

facilities located in St. Louis , ~issouri , and the numerous bottlers
located throughout the United States which purchase its products.
PAR. 5. In the course and conduct of its business , respondent
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except to the extent limited by the acts, practices and methods of
competition hereinafter alleged, has been and is now in competition
with other corporations, firms, partnerships and persons engaged in
the manufacture, processing, distribution and sale of soft drink
products in commerce.
PAR. 6. Seven-Up has hindered, frustrated , lessened and elimi-

nated competition in the distribution and sale of pre-mix concen-

trates and soft drink products sold under its trade names by
restricting its bottlers from sellng outside of a designated geographi-
cal area. This restriction is set forth in the agreements between
respondent and its bottlers.

A typical agreement between respondent and its bottlers provides
that the " . . . Bottler shall not directly or indirectly sell or distribute
Up in any territory other than hereinbefore described.

PAR. 7. The aforesaid agreements used by respondent have had,
and may continue to have , the following effects:

(a) Competition between and among respondent's bottlers in the
distribution and sale of " Up, Diet Up,

" "

LIKE" and I'Howdy
brands of soft drink products has been eliminated;

(b) Innumerable retailers and other customers have been de-
prived of the right to purchase " Up,

" "

Diet 7-Up,

" "

LIKE;' and
Howdy" brands of soft drink products from the bottler of their

choice at a competitive price; and
(c) Consumers of " Up,

" "

Diet 7-Up,

" "

LIKE" and "Howdy
brands of soft drink products have been deprived of the opportunity
of obtaining such products in an unrestricted market and at
competitive prices. (4)

PAR. 8. Respondent's contracts , agreements , acts, practices and
methods of competition aforesaid have had, and may continue to
have , the effect of lessening competition in the advertising, merchan-
dising, distribution , offering for sale and sale of pre-mix concentrates
and soft drink products; deprive , and may continue to deprive, the
public of the benefits of competition in the purchase of soft drink
products; and constitute unfair methods of competition and unfair
acts or practjces, in commerce, in violation of Section 5 of the
Federal Trade Commission Act.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that the
Royal Crown Cola Company, hereby made and sometimes hereinaf-
ter referred to as respondent, or Royal Crown , has violated the
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provisions of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15
U.8.C: 45), and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by
it in respect thereof would be in the public interest , hereby issues its
complaint, stating its charges in that respect as follows:
PARAGRAPH 1. For the purposes of this complaint, the following

definitions shall apply:

(a) Bottler - any individual , partnership, corporation , association
or other business or legal entity which purchases respondent's
concentrate for use in the manufacture and sale, primarily at
wholesale , of respondent' s pre-mix or post-mix syrups or soft drink
products, or who purchases respondent' s pre-mix or post-mix syrups
or soft drink products for resale, primarily at wholesale;

(b) Central warehousing - a method of distribution in which soft
drink products are received at a storage facility and either resold or
delivered to retail outlets or wholesalers;

(c) Concentrate - the basic soft drink ingredient sold to bottlers by
respondent, usually as a syrup. and which is combined with water
and other ingredients for packaging in bottles or cans for sale and
distribution as soft drink products, or is used to make post-mix and
pre-mIX syrups;

(d) Consignment - a form of distribution in which the consignor
retains title, dominion, bears all risks of loss and delivers his

products to the consignee who is indistinguishable from a salesman
or agent; (2)

(e) Place of business - the location of any facilities available to a
bottler without regard to customers or geographic area for produc-

tion or service in the conduct of business operations , to include but
not limited to business headquarters , branch sales offices, ware-
houses and garages, but specifically excluding the plant at which a

bottler combines concentrate with water, and possibly other ingredi-
ents , for the packaging of soft drink products;

(D Post- mix syrup - soft drink concentrate which is used in
fountain dispensing or vending equipment and is usually sold by
bottlers in steel tanks. A typical post-mix system draws one ounce of
syrup from a tank , usually having about a five-gallon capacity and
mixes it at the point of sale with five ounces of carbonated water to
produce approximately 600 six-ounce finished soft drink servings per
tank;

(g) 

Pre-mix syrup - although essentially the same syrup as post-
mix , a pre-mix system differs from a post-mix system in that it draws
from a tank, usually having about a five-gallon capacity, a finished
serving of soft drink product containing both syrup and carbonated
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water pre mixed to produce 100 six-ounce soft drink servings per

tank; and
(h) Soft drink products - nonalcoholic beverages and colas

carbonated and uncarbonated, flavored and nonflavored, sold in

bottles and cans, or through pre-mix and post-mix systems or the
like.

PAR. 2. Respondent is a corporation organized, existing and

conducting its business under and pursuant to the laws of the State
of Delaware. It maintains its office and principal place of business at
1000 10th Ave. , Box 1440, Columbus, Georgia. Respondent had sales
of $80 059 394 and assets of $23 873 489 in 1969. In 1968, Royal
Crown Cola made sales to over 333 domestic bottlers located in every
state of the United States.

PAR. 3. Respondent is engaged principally in the manufacture
and sale of concentrate which it sells to its over 333 bottlers who
purchase the concentrate under a license to produce and sell soft
drink products under respondent's trade names such as "Royal
Crown

" "

Diet Rite

" "

Nehi

" "

Par- Pak

" "

Kick " H
Lift" and

Gatorade." Royal Crown bottlers combine the concentrate with
water and other ingredients and package the mixture in bottles and
cans for resale as soft drink products to retailers. In addition, to

manufacturing and sellng concentrate to its bottlers, it operates
bottling plants in seven areas of the United States and sells soft
drink products to retailers. (3)

PAR. 4. Respondent is engaged in "commerce" within the mean-
ing of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U. C, 44) in that a

continuous flow of interstate commerce in concentrate and soft drink
products exists between its headquarters and production facilities
located in Columbus, Georgia, and the numerous bottlers located
throughout the United States which purchase its products.
PAR. 5. In the course and conduct of its business, respondent

except to the extent limited by the acts, practices and methods of
competition hereinafter alleged, has been and is now in competition
with other corporations, firms, partnerships and persons engaged in
the manufacture, processing, distribution and sale of concentrate
and soft drink products in commerce.

PAR. 6. Royal Crown has hindered, frustrated, lessened and

eliminated competition in the distribution and sale of pre-mix and
post-mix syrups and soft drink products sold under its trade names
by restricting its bottlers from sellng outside of a designated
geographical area. This restriction is set forth in the agreements
between respondent and its franchised bottlers. A typical agreement
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between respondent and its bottlers provides that "The license of the
bottler to sell Royal Crown beverages and to use the company
Royal Crown trademark is limited to the described territory, and the
bottler shall not sell Royal Crown beverages to any person for resale
without the limits of said territory.

PAR. 7. The aforesaid agreements used by respondent have had,
and may continue to have, the following effects:

(a) Competition between and among respondent's bottlers in the
distribution and sale of "Royal Crown Diet Rite Nehi," Par-
Pak," HKick Lift" and "Gatorade" brands of soft drink products
has been eliminated;
(b) Competition between and among Royal Crown s bottling

operations and its bottlers in the distribution and sale of Royal
Crown soft drink products at the wholesale level has been eliminat-
ed;

(c) Innumerable retailers and other customers have been de-
prived of the right to purchase "Royal Crown

" "

Diet Rite " HNehi
Par- Pak

" "

Kick

" "

Lift" and " Gatorade" brands of soft drink
products from the bottler of their choice at a competitive price; and
(4)
(d) Consumers of "Royal Crown

" q

niet Rite

" "

Nehi

" "

Par-
Pak " fCKick

" "

Lift" and HGatorade" brands of soft drink products
have been deprived of the opportunity of obtaining such products in
an unrestricted market and at competitive prices.

PAR. 8. Respondent's contracts, agreements, acts , practices and
methods of competition aforesaid have had, and may continue to
have, the effect of lessening competition in the advertising, merchan-
dising, distribution , offering for sale and sale of pre-mix and post-mix
syrups and soft drink products, deprive, and may continue to
deprive , the public of the benefits of competition in the purchase of
pre-mix , post-mix and soft drink products; and constitute unfair
methods of competition and unfair acts or practices, in commerce , in
violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that
Norton Simon , Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Canada Dry
Corporation , each hereby made and sometimes hereinafter referred
to as respondent(s), or as Norton Simon or Canada Dry, have violated
the provisions of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15
U . C. 45), and it appearing to the Commission that a proceeding by
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it in respect thereof would be in tbe public interest, hereby issues its
complaint, stating its charges in that respect as follows:
PARAGRAPH 1. For the purposes of this complaint, the following

definitions shall apply:

(a) Bottler - any individual partnership, corporation , association
or other business or legal entity which purchases respondents

concentrate for use in the manufacture and sale, primarily at
wholesale, of respondents ' pre-mix or post-mix syrups or soft drink
products, or who purchases respondents ' pre-mix or post-mix syrups
or soft drink products for resale , primarily at wholesale;

(b) Central warehousing - a method of distribution in which soft
drink products are received at a storage facility and either resold or
delivered to retail outlets or wholesalers;

(c) Concentrate - the basic soft drink ingredient sold to bottlers by
respondents, which is combined with water and other ingredients for
packaging in bottles or cans for sale and distribution as soft drink
products, or is used to make post-mix and pre-mix syrups; (2)

(d) Consignment - a form of distribution in which the consignor
retains title, dominion, bears all risks of loss and delivers his

products to the consignee who is indistinguishable from a salesman
or agent;

(e) Place of business - the location of any facilities available to a
bottler without regard to customers or geographic area for produc-

tion or service in the conduct of busines operations , to include but
not limited to business headquarters, branch sales offices , ware-
houses and garages, but specifically excluding tbe plant at which a
bottler combines concentrate with water, and possibly other ingredi-
ents , for the packaging of soft drink products;

(D Post-mix syrup - soft drink concentrate which is used in
fountain dispensing or vending equipment and is usually sold by
bottlers in steel tanks. A typical post-mix system draws one ounce of
syrup from a five-gallon tank and mixes it at the point of sale with
five ounces of carbonated water to produce 600 six-ounce finished
soft drink servings per tank;

(g) 

Pre-mix syrup - although essentially the same syrup as post-

mix, a pre-mix system differs from a post-mix system in that it draws
from a five-gallon tank a serving of soft drink products containing
both syrup and carbonated water to produce 100 six-ounce finished
soft drink servings per tank; and

(h) Soft drink products - nonalcoholic beverages and colas
carbonated and uncarbonated, flavored and non-flavored, sold in

Q" - ' OL 3
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bott' s and cans , or through pre-mix and post-mix systems or the
like.

PAR. 2. Respondent Norton Simon is a corporation organized
existing and conducting its business under and pursuant to the laws
of the State of Delaware. It maintains its office and principal place of
business at 230 Park Ave. , New York, New York. Respondent Norton
Simon had sales of $1 046 031 000 in 1970 and of $984 428 000 in
1969. Assets totaled $734 545 000 in 1969. (3)

Respondent Canada Dry, since 1968 a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Norton Simon , is a corporation organized. existing and conducting
its business under and pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware.
It maintains its executive offces and principal place of business at

100 Park Ave , New York, New York. Respondent Canada Dry was
incorporated in the State of Delaware on June 30, 1969. Respondent
Canada Dry is the successor to the concentrate and soft drink
business of an earlier corporation which was incorporated in the
State of Delaware on ~ay 13, 1968, as the Nadaca Beverage

Corporation; such name being changed to Canada Dry Corporation
on July 17 , 1968. The Nadaca Beverage Corporation was the
successor to all business of another Canada Dry Corporation which
was incorporated in the State of Delaware on June 1 , 1925.
Whenever acti ities, undertakings, arrangements or agreements of
respondent Canada Dry are alleged to have occurred prior to June

, 1969, it shall refer to the appropriate predecessor corporation
during the applicable period. In 1969, Respondent Canada Dry had
sales of approximately $7 300 000 for soft drink concentrate to over
190 licensed bottlers located in every State of the United States.
Total soft drink sales by Canada Dry were $108 200 000 in 1969.

PAR. 3. Respondent Norton Simon through various subsidiaries
is engaged in diverse businesses , such as the sale of soft drink
products and concentrate, and distilled spirits (Canada Dry), food
and food service (Hunt Foods & Industries, Inc.), packaging systems
(United Can Co. , and Glass Containers Corp. ), and communications
(~cCall Publishing Co. , and Saturday Review, Inc.). In 1969 sales by
respondent Canada Dry (including distiled spirits sales) accounted
for approximately 20% of total sales by Norton Simon. In 1967 , prior
to its acquisition by Norton Simon , Canada Dry had net sales in
excess of $175 000 000.

Respondent Canada Dry is engaged principally in the manufacture
and sale of concentrate which it sells to its over 190 bottlers who
purchase the concentrate under a license to produce and sell soft
drink products under respondent's trade names such as 'Wink
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Sport Cola

" "

HI-SPOT

" "

Tahitian Treat " and "Canada Dry
brand ginger ale , club soda , collns (4Jmixer, quinine water, bitter
lemon , and various flavored beverages including root beer, orange
grape, lemon-lime , black cherry, and strawberry. Canada Dry
bottlers combine the concentrate with water and other ingredients
and package the mixture in bottes and cans for resale as soft drink
products to retailers. In addition to manufacturing and selling
concentrate to its bottlers , Canada Dry operates bottling plants in
several areas of the United States and sells soft drink products to
retailers.

PAR. 4. Respondents are engaged in commerce within the

meaning of the Federal Trade Commission Act (15 U. C. 44) in that

Norton Simon , through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Canada Dry,
causes a continuous flow of interstate commerce in soft ddnk
products and concentrate to exist between Canada Dry headquarters
and production facilities and the numerous bottlers located through-
out the United States which purchase their products.
PAR. 5. In the course and conduct of their businesses, respon-

dents , except to the extent limited by the acts , practices and methods
of competition hereinafter alleged , have been and are now in
competition with other corporations, firms, partnerships and persons
engaged in the manufacture, processing, distribution and sale of soft
drink products in commerce.

PAR. 6. Respondents have hindered, frustrated, lessened and

eliminated competition in the distribution and sale of pre-mix and
post-mix syrups and soft drink products sold under their trade names
by restricting their bottlers from selling outside of a designated
geographical area. This restriction is set forth in the agreements
between respondents and their bottlers. A typical agreement be-
tween respondent Canada Dry and its bottlers provides that:

ARTICLE 1. License and Territory. Canada Dry hereby grants the Bottler and the
Bottler hereby accepts from Canada Dry an exclusive license to manufacture , bottle
sell and distribute the "CANADA DRY" beverages referred to below in the following
territory only.

or provides that: (5J

The Bottler agrees that it wil not manufacture , bottle , sell or distribute , directly or
indirectly. 

. . 

carbonated beverages under the trade names or trademarks of Canada
Dry elsewhere than in the territory hereinabove described.

Canada Dry also sells soft drink products to bottlers (as that term
is defined heretofore) in bottes and cans pursuant to an agreement
which typically provides that:
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In as much as a portion of the State of Texas is served by franchised Bottlers , we

ask that you do not, under any circumstances, make deliveries of Canada Dry
merchandise into the following areas:

(The territory is described.

PAR. 7. The aforesaid agreements used by respondents have had
and may continue to have , the following effects:

(a) Competition between and among respondent Canada Dry
botters in the distribution and sale of "Wink

" "

Sport Cola

" "

HI-
SPOT

" "

Tahitian Treat " and "Canada Dry" brands of soft drink
products has been eliminated;

(b) Competition between and among Canada Dry s bottling

operations and its bottlers in the distribution and sale of Canada Dry
soft drink products at the wholesale level has been eliminated;

(c) Innumerable retailers and other customers have been de-
prived of the right to purchase "Wink

" "

Sport Cola

" "

HI-SPOT,'

Tahitian Treat " and HCanada Dry" brands of soft drink products
from the bottler of their choice at a competitive price; and
(d) Consumers of "Wink

" "

Sport Cola, HI-SPOT Tahitian
Treat " and "Canada Dry" brands of soft drink products have been
deprived of the opportunity of obtaining such products in an

unrestricted market and at competitive prices. (6)

PAR. 8. Respondents ' contracts , agreements, acts, practices and
methods of competition aforesaid have had and may continue to
have, the effect of lessening competition in the advertising, merchan-
dising, distribution , offering for sale and sale of pre-mix and post-mix
syrups and soft drink products; deprive, and may continue to
deprive, the public of the benefits of competition in the purchase of
soft drink products; and constitute unfair methods of competition
and unfair acts or practices, in commerce, in violation of Section 5 of
the Federal Trade Commission Act.

INITIAL DECISION BY

THOMAS F. HaWVER , ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE

JULY 22, 1981

On July 15, 1971, the Commission issued its complaints against
Crush International Limited et a!. , Dr. Pepper Company, The Seven-
Up Company and Royal Crown Cola Co. These were mailed on July

, 1971. The complaint against Norton Simon , Inc. and Canada Dry
Corporation was issued on ~arch 3, 1972 and was mailed on ~arch
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, 1972. Respondents in these five cases were charged with violating
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act for including
territorial exclusivity" provisions in their licensing agreements

with soft drink bottlers.
In view of the decision of the United States Court of Appeals for

the District of Columbia in Coca- Cola Co. v. Federal Trade Commis-
sion 642 F.2d 1387 (D.C. Cir. 1981), complaint counsel has fied
motions to dismiss these proceeding as to all respondents.

Section 3.22(e) of the Rules of Practice provides that an initial
decision shall be filed when a motion to dismiss is granted. Since it
appears appropriate to grant complaint counsel's motion to dismiss,
the following findings of fact and conclusions of law are hereby
made: (3)

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Although, as indicated above, complaints were issued against
these five respondents, the cases were never adjudicated.
2. These cases are companions to The Coca-Cola Co. Docket No.

8855, and Pepsico, Inc. Docket No. 8856 , two matters fully adjudicat-
ed and decided by the Commission on April 7 , 1978. (91 F. C. 517
and 680).
3. On September 19, 1978, then-assigned Administrative Law

Judge Joseph P. Dufresne issued an order staying proceedings in
these cases pending appellate review of the Commission s decisions
in Coca-Cola and Pepsi.

4. In Coca-Cola Co. v. Federal Trade Commission the United
States Court of Appeals, District of Columbia Circuit, set aside the
Commission s order in Coca-Cola and Pepsi because they were based
upon legal standards differing from those contained in the subse-

quently enacted Soft Drink Interbrand Competition Act. 15 U.8.

3501 et. seq. . The cases were remanded to the Commission for
dismissal.
5. On April 1 , 1981 , the Commission ordered that these proceed-

ings be dismissed without prejudice to any future proceedings under
the standards of the Soft Drink Interbrand Competition Act.

CONCLUSIONS

Since the instant complaints are based upon the same superseded
standards under which the Coca- Cola and Pepsico cases were
decided, it is concluded that there is no presently existing public
interest in continuing these matters, and that complaint counsel'
motion should be granted.
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ORDER

These cases are companions to The Coca- Cola Company, Docket
No. 8855 and Pepsico, Inc. Docket No. 8856 , two matters which the
United States Court of Appeals for the District of (2)Columbia in
Coca- Cola v. FTC, 642 F.2d 1387 (D.C. Cir. 1981), set aside because
they were based upon legal standards differing from those contained
in the Soft Drink Interbrand Competition Act, 15 UB. C. 3501 et seq.

These companion cases were thereafter dismissed by the Commission
without prejudice to any further proceeding under the standards of
the Soft Drink lnterbrand Competition Act. In view of the action of
the Court of Appeals , complaint counsel filed a motion before the
Administrative Law Judge to dismiss these proceedings as to all
respondents. The Administrative Law Judge filed his Initial Decision
in these matters on July 22 , 1981 , dismissing the complaints as to all
respondents, without prejudice to the Commission s right to institute
new proceedings under the standards set forth in the Soft Drink
lnterbrand Competition Act, should it determine that the public

interest so requires.

Now it is hereby ordered that the Initial Decision and Order be
and hereby is, effective immediately.

Commissioner Pertschuk did not participate.
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IN THE ~ATTER OF

GEORGE IRVIN CHEVROLET CO~PANY

FINAL ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE

TRUTH.IN-LENDING ACT AND SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9124; Complaint, March 6; 1979-Decisian, Sept. , 1981

This consent order requires, among other things, a Denver, Colorado , motor vehicle

dealer to cease failing to make all the credit disclosures required by Federal
law. Further, respondent is prohibited from using certain credit terms in
advertisements promoting credit sales, unless those advertisements also
include. statutorily required information in the manner prescribed by
RegulationZ.

Appearances

For the Commission: George S. Meyer and Cyrus Callum.

For the respondent: Glenn A. Mitchell , Michael G. Charapp, and
David U. Fierst, Stein, Mitchell Mezines, Washington, D.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission 
Act

and of the Truth-in-Lending Act and the implementing regulations
promulgated thereunder, and by virtue of the authority vested in it
by said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission having reason to believe
that George Irvin Chevrolet Co. , a corporation, hereinafter some-

times referred to as respondent, has violated the provisions of said
Acts and the implementing regulations promulgated under the
Truth-in-Lending Act and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding by it in respect thereto would be in the public interest
hereby issues its complaint stating its charges as follows:

PARAGRAPH 1. George Irvin Chevrolet Co. is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of Colorado with its principal office and place of
business located at 390 South Colorado Boulevard, Denver , Colorado.
PAR. 2. Respondent is now, and for many years has been, engaged

in the sale and distribution of new and used motor vehicles.
Respondent also provides a variety of automotive products and
services to consumers.
PAR. 3. In the ordinary course and conduct of its business as

aforesaid, respondent regularly arranges for the extension of con-
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sumer credit and is a creditor, as consumer credit" and "creditor
are defined in Section 226.2 of Regu.lation Z, the implementing
regulation of the Truth-in-Lending Act, duly promulgated by the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

PAR. 4. Subsequent to July 1 , 1969 , respondent, in the ordinary
course and conduct of its business, has caused to be televised
advertisements, which aid, promote or assist, directly or indirectly.
credit sales and other extensions of other than open end credit, as

advertiseIlent" and "credit sale" are defined in Section 226.2 of
Regulation Z.
PAR. 5. Respondent, in certain of these televised advertisements

has stated the amount of the downpayment, the amount of the
periodic installment payment . the number of installment payments
or the period of repayment without also stating, clearly, and
conspicuously, as required by Section 226.10(d)(2) of Regulation Z , all
of the following terms:

1) the cash price;
2) the amount of the downpayment required, or that no downpay-

ment is required , as applicable;
3) the number, amount, and due dates or period of payments

scheduled to repay the indebtedness if the credit is extended;
4) the amount of the finance charge expressed as an annual

percentage rate; and
5) the deferred payment price.

PAR. 6. Respondent, in certain of these televised advertisements
has .stated at various times the annual percentage rate, the cash
downpayment and the deferred payment price in terminology other
than that prescribed by Section 226.8 of Regulation Z, and contrary
to Section 226. 1O(d) of Regulation Z.
PAR. 7. Respondent, in certain of these televised advertisements

has used an advertising format in which the audio portion of the
advertisement contained only certain creditrepresentations selected
for emphasis, while the video portion of the advertisement contained
credit disclosures required by Section 226. 1O(d)(2) of Regulation Z.
For example, respondent televised an advertisement on June 16
1977 , which made use of avideographic crawl," a moving line of
print displayed across the television screen, that disclosed the
following verbatim: "NO DOWN 60 P~TS. OF $193.0 DEF. PRICE
$11 584.20 ANNUAL % RATE OF 14. 13% PLUS TAXES AND D &
H OF $48.50 SUBJ. TO PRIOR SALE STK #790." In this
advertisement, the audio portion stated only the amount and period
of installment payments. This format constitutes a failure to make
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disclosures clearly, conspicuously and in a meaningful sequence, as
required by Sections 226.6(a) and 226.10(d)(2) of Regulation Z.
PAR. 8. By and through the acts and practices set forth above

respondent has failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
, the implementing regulation of the Truth-in-Lending Act. Pursu-

ant to Section 103(s) of the Truth-in-Lending Act, such failure to
comply with Regulation Z constitutes a violation of that Act, and
pursuant to Section 108(c) thereof, respondent has engaged in unfair
or deceptive acts and practices and has thereby violated the Federal
Trade Commission Act.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Commission having heretofore issued its complaint charging
the respondent named in the caption hereof with violation of the
Truth-in-Lending Act and the implementing regulations promulgat-
ed thereunder and of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act
as amended, and the respondent having been served with a copy of
that complaint, together with a notice of contemplated relief; and

The respondent, its attorney, and counsel for the Commission
having thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent
order, an admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts
set forth in the complaint, a statement that the signing of said

agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondent that the law ha been violated as alleged in
such complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission s Rules; and

The Secretary of the Commission having thereafter withdrawn
this matter from adjudication in accordance with Section 3.24(c) of
its Rules; and

The Commission having considered the matter and having there-
upon accepted the executed consent agreement and placed such

agreement on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days, now in
further conformity with the procedure prescribed in Section 3.24(1) of
its Rules, the Commission hereby makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent George Irvin Chevrolet Co. is a corporation
organized , existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of Colorado, with its offce and principal place of
business located at 390 South Colorado Boulevard, in the city of

Denver , State of Colorado.
2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
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matter 'Jf this proceeding and of the respondent , and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER

It is ordered That respondent George Irvin Chevrolet Co., a
corporation, its successors and assigns, and respondent's officers

agents, representatives and employees, directly or through any
corporation or other device, in connection with any advertisement to
aid , promote, or assist, directly or indirectly, any extension of
consumer credit, as t(advertisement" and Hconsumer credit" are
defined in Regulation Z (12 CFR 226 et seg. of the Truth-in-Lending
Act (Pub. Law 90-321 , 15 D. C. 1601 et seg.

), 

do forthwith cease and
desist from:

1. Stating that no down payment is required, or stating the
amount of the downpayment or of any installment payment required
(either in dollars or as a percentage), the dollar amount of any
finance charge, the number of installments or the period of
repayment, or stating that there is no charge for credit, unless all of
the following items are also clearly and conspicuously set forth in
terminology prescribed by Section 226.8 of Regulation Z, as required
by Section 226. 1O(d)(2) of Regulation Z:

(a) the cash price;

(b) the amount of the down payment required or that no down pay-
ment is required, as applicable;

(c) the number, the amount, and due dates or period of payments
scheduled to repay the indebtedness if the credit is extended;

(d) the amount of the finance charge expressed as an annual
percentage rate; and

(e) the deferred payment price.

2. Failing in connection with all television and radio advertise-
ments in which cost of credit disclosures must be made pursuant to
Section 226. 1O(d)(2) of Regulation Z, to make such disclosures clearly,
conspicuously, and in meaningful sequence, as required by Section
226.6(a) of Regulation Z. The following standards shall be met in
order for a television advertisement to be deemed a "clear and
conspicuous" disclosure within the meaning of this order:

(a) (i) the finance charge expressed as an annual percentage

rate shall be presented simultaneously in both the audio and video
portions of the television advertisement;

(ii) the remaining disclosures required by Section 226. 1O(d)(2) of
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Regulation Z shall be presented in the video portion of the television
advertisement;

(iii) any of the remaining disclosures required by Section
226. 1O(d)(2) of Regulation Z may be presented in the audio portion of
the television advertisement , but if so presented, shall be presented
simultaneously and in identical sequence in both the audio and video
portions of the television advertisement;
(b) the video portion of the required credit disclosures shall

contain letters large enough to be easily seen and read with
reasonable ease on all television sets , regardless of picture tube size
that are commercially available to the consuming public;
(c) the video portion of the required credit disclosures shall

contain letters of a color or shade that readily contrasts with the
background on both color and black and white television sets. The
background shall consist of only one color or shade;

(d) during the video portion of the required credit disclosures , no
words or images shall appear on the television screen which are not
part of the required disclosures; provided, however that during said

disclosures two-thirds of the television screen may contain images
which do not obscure or detract attention from the required
disclosures;

(e) the video presentation of the required credit disclosures shall
be no less than ten seconds ' duration;

CD during the audio portion of the required credit disclosures, no
sounds which obscure or detract attention from the required
disclosures may be presented;

(g) the audio portion of the required credit disclosures shall be

spoken with sufficient deliberateness, clarity, and volume, so as not
to obscure or detract attention from the required disclosures made in
either the video or audio portion;

(h) the audio and video portions of the required credit disclosures

shall immediately follow the specific representation which triggers
the affirmative disclosure requirement contained in Section
226. 1O(d)(2) of Regulation Z;

(i) the audio and video portion of the required credit disclosures
shall not give such emphasis to any disclosure as to obscure or
detract attention from the other credit disclosures.

It is further ordered That respondent, its successors and assigns
shall forthwith distribute a copy of this order to each of its operating
divisions and to each person responsible for or connected with
preparation of its television advertisements and secure from each
such person a signed statement acknowledging receipt of said order.
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It is further ordered That respondent notify the Commission at
least 30 days prior to any proposed change in respondent such as
dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the emergence of a
successor corporation , or any other circumstances which may affect
any compliance obligation arising out of this order.

It is further ordered That respondent George Irvin Chevrolet Co.
shall, within sixty (60) days after this order becomes final , file with
the Commission a report in writing setting forth in detail the
manner and form in which it has complied with this order.
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IN THE ~ATTER OF

EXXON CORPORATION , ET AL.

FINAL ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF SEC.
5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 89.14. Complaint, July 1973 Dismissal Order, Sepl. , 1981

This order dismisses without prejudice the Commission s July 18 , 1973 complaint
charging eight major oil companies with maintaining and reinforcing a non-
competitive market structure in the refining of crude oil into petroleum

products. Upon agreement between complaint counsel and respondents that
the matter cannot be resolved in the foreseeable future, the Commission

concluded that pending proceedings were not in the public interest. The order
also vacates the AI..'sJanuary 5 , 1977 Protective Order, as modifed by the
AW' s Orders of April 23 and June 5, 1979; and bars the Commission from
disclosing documents and information protected by these orders to any
unauthorized party, or pursuant to an FOIA request. Upon dismissal of the
complaint, the agency is additionally required to place respondents' docu-
ments, received pursuant to discovery in Docket 8934, in the . physical
possession of a designated custodian to be accorded the protections provided
by Section 21 of the FTCA.

Appearances

For the Commission: John A. Woodstock, Marc G. Schildkraut
Daniel P. Ducore, Arthur J. Nolan, Rhett R. Krulla, David C. Dickey,
Gregory M Fox, James M. Giffin, Oleta J. Harden, Eugene Higgins,
Charles A. James, Jeff Jacobovitz, Patrick J. O'Brien, Mark L.
Rosenberg, and Constance M. Salemi.

For the respondents: Robert E. Jordan IlL Richard H. Porter and
F. Michael Kail, Steptoe Johnson Washington , D. , and Edward
E. Vaill in-house Litigation Counsel, Los Angeles, Calif. , for Atlantic
Richfield Co. Willam Simon and Robert G. Abrams, Howrey &
Simon Washington , D. , and Charles W. Mathews, house coun-
sel Houston , Tex. , and A.P. Lindemann, Jr. in-house counsel, New
York City, for Exxon Corp. , and John E. Bailey, Assistant General
Counsel, and Morgan L. Copeland in-house counsel , Houston , Tex.
for Gulf Oil Corp. , and Andrew J. Kilcarr and Vincent Tricarico
Donovan Leisure Newton Irvine Washington, D. , and Charles F.
Rice, in-house counsel , New York City, for ~obil Oil Corp. , and
William R. Jentes and Tefft W. Smith, Kirkland Ellis, Chicago
Ill. , and J. Keating, Paula J. Clayton, and Jeffrey R. Harder in-
house counsel, Chicago, Il. , for Standard Oil Co. (Indiana), and
George A. Sears, Richard W. Odgers and Roland W. Selman
Pillsbury, Madison Sutm, San Francisco, Calif. , for Standard Oil




